
  

DESERT WATER AGENCY   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2016                                                         REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 
REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. INTRODUCTION OF NEW EMPLOYEES  KRAUSE 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  A. September 6, 2016  CIOFFI                                                
                                 

4. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

5. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Executive – September 13, 2016  CIOFFI                                   
                 
6. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

7. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT  - AUGUST 2016  BLOOMER                                                                        
  

8. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
 A. Request Authorization to Participate in the 2016-2017 USGS Cooperative  KRAUSE 
  Water Resources Program 
 
9. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A.  August Water Production Comparison   KRAUSE 
B. Lake Perris Seismic Remediation Update  KRAUSE 
C. Director’s Attendance at ACWA Groundwater Committee Meeting  EWING                                              

 
10. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
11. CLOSED SESSION 

 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
September 20, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 
 E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steve L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition 
   
12. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
13. ADJOURN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



2 
 

 

Desert Water Agency 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

September 20, 2016 
 
 
The following employees are scheduled to attend and be introduced to the 
Board of Directors at the September 20, 2016 Board Meeting: 

 
Name 

 

 
Date Employed 

 
Classification/Department 

Alfredo Felix 
 

March 7, 2016 
 

Water Service Worker I 

Ryan Wooten 
 

March 7, 2016 
 

Water Service Worker I 

 



8697 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 

   MINUTES               3 
OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

September 6, 2016 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
 
Absent: Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
    
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach/Conserv. Manager ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
  
Public: David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
  
  
       

Attendance 

17559.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Director Ewing in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
   
17560.   President Cioffi called for approval of the August 2, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Ewing moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart the minutes were approved as written (President Cioffi 
abstained, Director Oygar absence noted). 
 
17561.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on August 4 at approximately 9:00 a.m., 
staff was notified of a stolen backflow at 68895 Perez Rd. The thieves 
turned off the angle stop; there was no water loss. It has been replaced and 
back in service. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 08/02/16 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Stolen Backflow – 
68895 Perez Rd. 
 
 
 
 
 



8698 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
  Mr. Krause stated on August 12 at approximately 8:00 a.m. 
staff responded to a hit angle stop at 3099 Linea Terrace. Staff replaced the 
angel stop and meter register. A damage report was filled out and the 
developer, Alta Verde Group will be charged. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated on August 16 at 
approximately 10:15 a.m., staff noticed a stolen 2-inch backflow on Civic 
Dr. and Alejo Rd., which belongs to the City. Staff notified them and was 
given authorization to replace the backflow. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on August 17, DWA’s construction crew 
was on Farrell Drive, south of Sonora Rd., repairing a service leak. At 
approximately 12:30 p.m., a vehicle clipped the driver’s side door of Unit 
#18. Our crew had the northbound fast lane closed and the vehicle came 
down heading north in the wrong lane (southbound lane) and clipped the 
door. Palm Springs Police department came out and took a report. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted on August 16, DWA was contacted by 
Jenela Hartman of the California State Water Board.  She notified us that 
Metropolitan Water District had included the DWA/CVWD State Water 
Project, Table A transfer callback as part of their stress test water supply.  
DWA had also included the callback water as part of its water supply.  She 
indicated that only one agency could claim this water as part of their water 
supply. DWA then recalculated its water supply excluding the callback 
water and instead of mirroring our water supply deliveries from 2013-2015 
it relied solely on Table A and historic allocation percentages from the 
years 2013-2015.  The recalculation did not impact the original 
conservation standard calculation of 0%. 
   
  Mr. Krause noted several meetings and activities he 
participated in during the past several weeks. 
   
17562.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the August 16, 2016 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
 
17563.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the August 30, 2016 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17564.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
         
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17565.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of July 2016. 
 
 

General Manager’s 
Report 
(Cont.) 
 
Hit Angle Stop – 3099 
Linea Terrace 
 
 
Stolen Backflow – 
Civic Dr., /Alejo Rd. 
 
 
 
 
 
DWA Vehicle Damage 
– Unit #18 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Emergency 
Conservation 
Regulations – Stress 
Test 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Conservation & Public 
Affairs 08/16/16 
 
 
Executive 08/30/16 
 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report – July 2016 
 
 
 
 



8699 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating 
Fund received $2,241,639 in Water Sales Revenue, $150,636 in 
Reclamation Sales Revenue. $404,701 was included in Miscellaneous 
Receipts (Turf Buyback Funds-Partial, Prop 84 Round 3 Grant), including 
$12,651 (SCE Solar Field II Energy Rebate-June). Year-to-date Water Sales 
(1 month) are 7% over budget, Year-to-date Revenues (1 month) are 4% 
over budget, Year-to-date Expenses are 22% under budget. There were 
22,287 active services as of July 31, 2016 compared to 22,304 as of June 
30, 2016.  
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer 
stated $365,777 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $223,108 was 
received in Groundwater Assessments from private pumpers. $625,292 was 
received for Net Reimbursement from Operating Fund ($761,919 - 
$136,627) for June P/R and Expense Reimbursement. $9,859 was included 
in Miscellaneous Receipts from CVWD for Prop 84 Round 1 Grant Funds 
(IRWMP). $3,125,404 was paid out in State Water Project Charges, 
$93,834 paid out for 2016/17 State Water Contractor Dues, and $11,300 
paid out for 2016/17 LAFCO fees. 
 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer reported $27,149 was received in Sewer Capacity Charges. There 
were a total of 71 Sewer Contracts with 26 delinquent (37%), with one 
account paid in full. $57,084 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
17566.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present the civil penalty hearing for water use violations. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted there have been more than 300 violations 
issued and that recipients have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Six 
violations have hearings today. He stated the first appellant is Leonard and 
Norma Gerona. He noted the violations: 1) Irrigating during restricted 
hours; and 2) Irrigating on a restricted day. The fine amount is $50 and 
reason for appeal is the power was turned off and they forgot to reset the 
timer. 
 
  Norma Gerona stated their realtor turned off the electricity 
and she forgot to turn it back on. Because of this, the timer was not reset to 
the correct watering time. 
 
  Director Ewing noted that the photos also show a runoff issue. 
 
   Director Ewing made a motion to deny the appeal, waive 
penalty, noting a violation occurred. After a second by Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer, the motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
 
 

Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (Cont.) 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Item for Action: 
Water Use Violation – 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 
 
Leonard & Norma 
Gerona/3118 E. Vista 
Chino  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deny Appeal/Uphold 
Violation/Waive 
Penalty 
 
 
 
 
 



8700 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
  Mr. Krause stated the second appellant is David Milani. He 
noted the violation: 1) Hosing off hardscape. The fine amount is $100 and 
the reason for appeal is a temporary worker used hose without owner’s 
permission. 
 
  The Board concurred that the photos showed hosing down of 
more than the driveway area as indicated in the appellant’s letter. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to deny the appeal (violation 
occurred) and issue the penalty. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the 
motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
  Agency Counsel Riddell noted that this item also violates 
state regulations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the third appellant is Wessman 
Development. He noted the violations: 1) Irrigating during restricted hours, 
2) Irrigating on a restricted day; and 3) Runoff. The fine amount is $500 
(third violation) and reason for appeal is out of sync timer; power outage. 
 
  Outreach and Conservation Manager Metzger noted that the 
previous two violations were for the same three issues. She has also 
contacted the appellant about installing a smart controller; there has been no 
response. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to deny the appeal (violation 
occurred) and issue the penalty. After a second by Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer, the motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
   
  Mr. Krause stated the fourth appellant is Larry Simonson. He 
noted the violations: 1) Irrigating during restricted hours, 2) Irrigating on a 
restricted day; and 3) Runoff. The fine amount is $100 (second violation) 
and the reason for appeal is due to SCE planned power outage. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted the first violation was for the same three 
issues. 
 
  The Board concurred on the runoff issue. 
 
  President Cioffi noted the majority of timers have a battery 
backup. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to deny the appeal 
(violation occurred), and issue the penalty. After a second by Secretary-
Treasurer Bloomer, the motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar 
absent). 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 
David Milani/2090 S. 
Camino Real 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deny Appeal/Uphold 
Violation/Issue Penalty 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wessman 
Development/67555 
Palm Canyon Drive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deny Appeal/Uphold 
Violation/Issue Penalty 
 
 
 
 
Larry Simonson/500 E. 
Bogert Trail 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deny Appeal/Uphold 
Violation/Issue Penalty 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8701 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
  Vice President Stuart requested that the appellant be informed 
of the free smart controller program. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the fifth appellant is Joanne Bekke and 
Gilbert Wiener. He noted the violations: 1) Irrigating during restricted 
hours, and 2) Runoff. The fine amount is $50 and the reason for appeal is 
they were unaware of the problem; the issue has been resolved. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted a DWA smart controller was installed at 
this property in February 2016. 
 
  Ms. Bekke stated there is a communication problem with their 
landscape company, but it is now resolved. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to deny the appeal 
(violation occurred), and waive the penalty. After a second by Director 
Ewing, the motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the sixth appellant is Destination Ramon 
Shopping Center. He noted the violations: 1) Irrigating during restricted 
hours, and 2) Runoff. The fine amount is $200 (second violation) and the 
reason for appeal is the sprinkler system was being tested. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted the previous violation was for the same 
issues. She then stated that the Agency’s employee witnessed violations 
prior to this event and the following week. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to deny the appeal, uphold 
violation and issue the penalty. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the 
motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
17567.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to 
present staff’s request for acceptance of work for the Chino Canyon 1040 
zone reservoir project. 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated that all construction work performed by 
Canyon Springs Enterprises dba RSH Construction has been essentially 
completed. To date, no stop notices have been filed. Staff recommends 
acceptance of work in the amount of $912,180.07. Subsequent to 
acceptance, a notice of completion will be filed. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. Director Ewing seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 
Joanne Bekke & Gilbert 
Wiener/3100 E. Sonora 
Rd. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deny Appeal/Uphold 
Violation/Waive 
Penalty 
 
 
 
Destination Ramon 
Shopping Center 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Deny Appeal/Uphold 
Violation/Issue Penalty 
 
 
 
 
Request Acceptance of 
Work/Chino Cyn 1040 
Zone Reservoir Project 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8702 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
17568.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to 
present staff’s request for authorization to execute quitclaim terminating 
temporary drainage easement interest within Desert Palisade Development, 
Tract Map No. 35540. 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated as part of the reservoir site grading 
project, Pinnacle View, LLC granted the Agency a temporary drainage 
easement over Lots 106-110 within the development for the reservoir 
overflow and site drainage until a permanent drainage facility could be 
built. A new drainage pipeline was constructed within the existing street 
(Rising Sun Court) to convey reservoir overflow and site drainage to a 
natural drainage ditch located within the tract. This new pipeline eliminates 
the need for the temporary drainage easement. A new Easement Grant has 
been prepared allowing the Agency to operate and maintain the drainage 
pipeline. Pinnacle View, LLC has also prepared a quitclaim deed vacating 
the temporary drainage easement. Staff recommends authorization to 
execute quitclaim, terminating the temporary drainage easement over Lots 
106-110 on Tract Map No. 35540. 
     
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. After a second by Director Ewing, the motion carried 
unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
17569.  President Cioffi invited Agency Counsel Riddell to present 
the request for authorization to sign informed written consent. 
 
  Mr. Riddell stated that Best Best & Krieger LLP serves as 
general counsel to several water districts that will be dealing with 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act issues in the San Gorgonio Pass 
Subbasin, including the San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency, Cabazon Water 
District and High Valley Water District. Although DWA’s boundaries 
include only a small portion of that subbasin, and its involvement will be 
minimal, DWA will probably need to enter into an agreement or MOU with 
the other districts to coordinate with them in complying with SGMA. All of 
these districts may seek advice from BB&K in that effort. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Riddell noted that although there 
are no anticipated conflicts, the potential exists; therefore, BB&K clients 
are executing informed written consents to allow them to continue using 
BB&K for review and advice. All three of the other districts have already 
signed consents substantially identical to the consent presented today. Staff 
requests authorization to sign and return the informed written consent. 
 
  In response to Vice President Stuart’s question on page 3 of 
the consent regarding disclosing confidential information, Mr. Krause 
replied that at this time he does not see a problem. 
 
 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Authorization 
to Terminate Quitclaim 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
to Execute Informed 
Written Consent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8703 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
  In response to Vice President Stuart’s question on the last 
sentence regarding an independent legal opinion, Mr. Krause indicated 
there is no need at this time for another opinion. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the motion 
carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
17570.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for authorization to enter into a MOU for the management of 
the Indio Subbasin. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated Senate Bill (SB 1168), Assembly Bill 
(AB1739) and SB 1319 provides for a statewide framework for sustainable 
groundwater management in California. This legislation, referred to as the 
Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) is intended to support 
local groundwater management through the oversight of a Groundwater 
Sustainability Agency (GSA). The SGMA requires all areas of a basin be 
covered by one or more GSA’s in all high and medium priority basins by 
June 30, 2017. DWA has been named the “exclusive” GSA for the area 
within its boundaries. The SGMA also requires the GSA to develop either a 
groundwater sustainability plan (GSP) or alternative GSP for their 
respective groundwater basins within the boundary of DWA. The partners 
have elected to develop an alternative GSP. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause noted this MOU is for 
governance of the Indio Subbasin under the SGMA. Its intent is to 
encourage cooperation and coordination regarding management of the 
subbasin and to improve and maintain overall communications. Granting 
authority to enter into this MOU will obligate DWA to move forward on 
developing and submitting an alternative GSP with the partners. This GSP 
will consist of a bridge document prepared by MWH and the 2010 
Coachella Valley Water Management Plan update. The total cost for MWH 
to perform said work is $112,733, with each partner paying $28,180.75. 
Staff recommends authorization for the General Manager to enter into a 
MOU with the partners for developing a common understanding regarding 
the governance structures applicable to implementation of the SGMA. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. After a second by Director Ewing, the motion carried 
unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
17571.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request for Board action regarding a claim filed by Michael 
Kapalungan. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated Mr. Kapalungan filed a claim for damages 
(vehicle) on August 11, regarding a leak which occurred on July 14.   

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Authorization 
to Execute Informed 
Written Consent 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
to Execute SGMA 
MOU in the Indio 
Subbasin 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Claim for Damages-
Michael Kapalungan 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8704 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
  Mr. Krause noted that the leak information was documented 
in his July 19 report. He stated that it was apparent there was substantial 
damage and the vehicle had become unusable. For this reason, staff 
forwarded the claim to ACWA/JPIA for their review and handling. It was 
determined by the claimant’s auto insurance company the vehicle was 
totaled. Reimbursement for his deductible has been paid by ACWA/JPIA. 
As indicated, the claim has been paid by ACWA/JPIA, therefore as a 
formality and procedure, ACWA/JPIA requests the Board deny any and all 
claims arising from Mr. Kapalungan’s claim. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to deny any and all claims 
arising from Mr. Kapalungan’s claim. After a second by Vice President 
Stuart, the motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
   
17572.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to present 
staff’s request to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding with United 
Way of the Desert to establish a Customer Assistance Program. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated United Way of the Desert (UWD) manages 
customer assistance programs for Mission Springs Water District and 
Coachella Water Authority. DWA staff has worked with UWD on a 
framework for a similar fund, which would be supported by employee, 
business and community contributions. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause noted that eligible 
customers would receive a $50 credit on a water bill available once per 
year. Customers who express financial hardship will be directed to UWD to 
substantiate their financial need based on income qualifications detailed in 
the MOU. Once approved, UWD would contact DWA and staff would 
credit the approved customer’s account. UWD and DWA would keep a list 
of the program participants. If approved, the program would be publicized 
and available to customers starting in October. Staff recommends the Board 
authorize the Agency to enter into a MOU with UWD to establish a 
customer assistance program to be funded through employee, business and 
community contributions. 
 
  In response to Vice President Stuart, Mr. Krause stated DWA 
would pay UWD a monthly administrative fee. UWD has indicated that this 
fee may be waived during months there are no applicants. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve staff’s 
recommendation. After a second by Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer, the 
motion passed unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
17573.  President Cioffi stated Director Ewing is currently serving on 
ACWA’s Groundwater Committee. The Committee meets four times a 
year, two of which occur at the Spring and Fall conferences, and one in 
Northern California and the other in Southern California. The next meeting 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Claim for Damages-
Michael Kapalungan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Approval – 
MOU with United Way 
of the Desert for 
Customer Assistance 
Program 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8705 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
will be held in Tulare.  
 
  Director Ewing stated there might be subcommittees formed 
which he may be interested. 
 
  President Cioffi requested Director Ewing to bring back to the 
Board for authorization any request for subcommittee participation. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve Director 
Ewing’s attendance and expense reimbursements for attendance at ACWA 
Groundwater Committee meetings. After a second by President Cioffi, the 
motion carried unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
 
17574.  President Cioffi asked General Manager Krause to provide an 
update on the San Gorgonio Pass SGMA. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the Sustainable Ground Water Management 
Act (SGMA) requires that the entire area of a groundwater basin that is 
classified as either high or medium priority shall be covered by one or more 
Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA). DWA boundary overlies a 
portion of the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin (SGPS) is classified as medium 
priority, and as such needs to be covered by one or more GSA’s. DWA is 
currently working with City of Banning, High Valleys Water District, 
Cabazon Water District, Mission Springs Water District, and Morongo 
Band of Mission Indians (MBMI) to fulfill the requirements of SGMA 
within the SGPS. As such, the group excluding Morongo Band of Mission 
Indians and DWA has elected to form and be governed by a single GSA. 
The establishment of this GSA will be under a memorandum of agreement 
(MOA). An executive committee will oversee this GSA with members from 
the City of Banning, High Valleys Water District, Cabazon Water District, 
and Mission Springs Water District. A majority vote will determine 
decisions for this GSA. Said GSA will govern areas within the GSA’s 
member areas.     
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated that DWA will be 
outside the governing influence of above-mentioned GSA. Thus, DWA will 
be able to maintain its statutory right within its boundaries as the exclusive 
local agency with the power to comply with SGMA. To preserve its right, 
DWA has formed a separate GSA and intends to enter into an MOU with 
the above-mentioned GSA. It is important for DWA to maintain its interest 
in the SGPS. Currently, MSWD owns and operates two wells within 
DWA’s boundary that overlies the SGPS.  
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted that MBMI, which 
encompasses approximately 65% of the SGPS, has determined it will not 
formally participate in SGMA. MBMI does plan to move forward on 
updating its water resource planning documents.  Only 35% of the basin 
falls under the SGMA regulations.   

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Request Board 
Approval-Director 
Ewing’s ACWA G/W 
Comm. Mtgs. & 
Expense 
Reimbursements 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
San Gorgonio Pass 
SGMA Update 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8706 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/06/16 

 
17575.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included media and 
public information reports for August 2016. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger noted the Agency has a new conservation 
coupon for leak detection, which is available through all Coachella Valley 
water agencies. She also stated there is still turf buy back funding for 
residential customers. 
 
17576.  At 9:23 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency; and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Assistant 
General Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite 
HOA, Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition.  
  
17577.  At 10:35 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
17578.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:36 a.m. 
 
 
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
Public Information – 
August 2016 
 
Conservation 
Coupon/Turf Buy Back 
Funding 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene – No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



4 

Page 1  

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 

  
  

 
 

 
On September 7 at approximately 11:15 a.m., Assistant Construction Superintendent Kuhlman 
responded to a leak on West Cerritos Dr. north of Andreas Rd. The leak was caused by the street 
grinder hitting the top of a four inch water main causing several gashes. The grinder also 
damaged a service line a couple of feet away. DWA’s crew shut down the water main and flexed 
a new piece of pipe to repair the water main and repair the service. Staff filled out a damage 
report and will bill Matich (contractor).                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



Page 2  

 

 
United Way Campaign  - On September 15, United Way of the Desert held its Kick Off Luncheon 
and Awards ceremony. For the 6th year in a row, DWA was awarded the Platinum Award. And, 
since its inception, DWA continues as the Water Challenge Winners!!! Congratulations to the 
Board and staff for their continued generosity. 
              
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 
09/07/16  SGMA Indio Subbasin Alternative Plan “Interested Party Meeting” – CVWD 
09/07/16     SGMA Mission Creek Subbasin Alternative Plan “Interested Party Meeting” –  
        CVWD 
09/08/16       SGMA San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin Monthly Meeting – Morongo Indians Amin.  
         Bldg. 
09/08/16        BB&K Conference Call with Joe Ortiz - Personnel Issues – DWA 
09/13/16        DWA Executive Committee Meeting – DWA 
09/14/16        SWC’s State Water Project Contractor Authority Board Meeting – Sacramento 
                      Delta Committee Update 
                      Cal WaterFix Update – Mark Cowin 
                      Site’s Reservoir Update – Jim Watson 
                      Policy Dinner Meeting 
09/15/16        SWC’s Monthly Board Meeting 
                      SWC’s State Water Project Contractors Authority Board Meeting 
09/16/16        SGMA Mission Creek Subbasin Conference call with San Bernardino County 
 Administrations Office  
09/16/16       Cyber Audit, Meeting with BLD Datalinks – DWA 
 
Activities: 
 

• United Way of The Desert – DWA Customer Assistance Program 
 

 















































9-A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 

 
RE: AUGUST 2016 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved an 18.5 percent reduction in total 
water production during August 2016 compared to the same month in 2013 – the 
baseline year used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to 
measure statewide conservation achievements. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative 
water savings June 2015 through August 2016 is 26% percent. The cumulative savings 
beginning in June of 2016 when we put our 10-13% target in place was 24.5%. 

DWA is asking its customers to save 10-13% to help achieve long-term sustainability. 
DWA reports its production to the state on a monthly basis. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for August 2016.  

August 2016 water production  3,120.8 AF 

August 2013 water production  3,831.5 AF 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 
and institutional users for the reporting month 

782.4 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 
going to residential use only for the reporting month 

69.6% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 105,719 

Estimated R-GPCD  215.9 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

23 

  



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 
actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

31 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 
warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 
violation of conservation rules? 

28 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation 
of conservation rules? 

25 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data 
on a per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent 
population of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use 
in DWA’s service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the 
correct population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per 
Capita Per Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 
month of August was 466,691 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 88,816 
acre feet. If our recycled water production for August was taken into consideration 
against our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several 
percentage points higher. 

 



9-B 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 

 
RE: LAKE PERRIS SEISMIC REMEDIATION UPDATE 
 

The Department of Water Resources (DWR), Operations Maintenance and 
Engineering Committee have issued their Perris Dam Seismic remediation of 
embankment contract update for September 2016.  The highlights of the 
attached report are 71% of the work has been completed with 59% of the time 
elapsed. The contractor continues to work on the following: the placement of 
material for the compacted berm, blasting and excavation of the left abutment 
road, quarry excavation and rock processing, placement of filter material and 
drain material for the existing toe-line drain, placement of filter material for 
blanket drain. Liquidated damages for the delays on the left abutment road are 
now being assessed. The contractor is still claiming a change in conditions 
regarding the quarry rock processing but the materials currently being produced 
are meeting specifications. 
 
To date there have been $702,000 in liquidated damages for the left abutment 
haul road and $802,614 (no change since update in April 2016) in change orders 
submitted.  This amount in change orders is a little more than 1% of the original 
contract.  This amount does not include anticipated change orders resulting from 
work being performed on the left abutment haul road nor the quarry rock 
processing plant.  It is still anticipated that the contractor will be submitting 
change orders for a change of site conditions for both of these items. 
 



 State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting  
Sept 8, 2016 

Perris Dam – Seismic Remediation of Embankment – Contract Update 
Specification 14-03  Contract No. C51484 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/ 

 
Contract Summary 
 

Notice To Begin Work:    August 20, 2014 
Contract Completion:      November 20, 2017 
Pulice Construction:        $75,538,626 
Engineers Estimate:        $83,000,000 
Current Update:             71% of Work Completed, 59% Time Elapsed 

 
 
 
 
 
Completed Work 

Cement Deep Soil Mixing Complete 
Borrow Source Cleared and Potholed 
Existing Toe Drain Line Replaced 
 

 
 
 
 
Safety 
 

DWR and Contractor continue to review left abutment safety hazard concerns.  Contractor has 
successfully completed over 247 work days without a lost-time incident.  1 lost-time incident on 
project.  

 
On-Going Work 
 

Processing and placement of Compacted Berm (R&R area); Blasting and Excavation of Left 
Abutment Road; Quarry Excavation and Rock Processing; Placement of filter and drain 
material for Existing Toe-Drain Line; Placement filter and drain material for blanket drain.   
 

Schedule and Construction Sequencing 
 

Construction sequencing was modified to allow CDSM construction before construction of the toe 
drain.  Left Abutment Road behind schedule, Toe Drains nearly complete, CDSM completed ahead 
of schedule (see Schedule Status below).   

 
Construction Contract Challenges and Potential Impacts 
 

Left Abutment Access Road Blasting 
Contractor continues work on blasting and excavation of the road near the tower after 
placement of berm/ramp.  DWR and the contractor have revised the plan and schedule to 
complete the left abutment blasting and excavation, liquidated damages are being assed for 
the LAAR milestone. 

 
 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/


 State Water Contractors - OME Committee Meeting  
Sept 8, 2016 

Perris Dam – Seismic Remediation of Embankment – Contract Update 
Specification 14-03  Contract No. C51484 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/ 

 
Quarry Rock Processing 
Contractor is processing drain and filter material in phase 2 production.  The filter and drain 
material are required for toe drains and blanket drain.  Contractor continues to claim differing 
site condition as the cause of material processing problems.  Materials currently meeting 
specifications. 
   
Other Challenges 
Weather and Heat, Rainfall and Storm Water   
 

Contract Status as of 7/20/2016 
 

Spec 
No. 

Award 
Amount 

Liquidated 
Damages 

Contract 
Variance To 
Date 

Current 
Contract 
Amount 

Current 
Contract 
Completion 
Date 

Pay To Date Percent 
Complete 

14-03 $75,538,626 $702,000 $1,870,250 $77,408,876 11/20/2017 $55,204,159 71.3% 

 
 
Contractor Pay Requests  
 

Start 
Date 

End 
Date 

Date 
Signed 

Net 
Payment 

Gross 
Earnings 

Net Payment 
(to date) 

Gross Earnings 
(to date) 

2/21/2016 3/20/2016 4/29/2016 $6,777,337.93 $7,295,092.56 $40,603,232.51 $42,901,297.38 
3/21/2016 4/20/2016 5/23/2016 $6,717,004.97 $7,217,373.65 $47,320,237.48 $50,118,671.03 
4/21/2016 6/20/2016 6/15/2016 $1,228,023.54 $1,434,761.62 $48,548,261.02 $51,553,432.65 
5/21/2016 6/20/2016 2/15/2016 $1,108,087.50 $1,313,250.00 $49,656,348.52 $52,866,682.65 
6/21/2016 7/20/2016 8/4/2016 $2,085,603.06 $2,337,476.90 $51,741,951.58 $55,204,159.55 
 
Schedule Status 
 

Left Abutment Access Road Milestone – May 15, 2015  
Estimated Completion Date – October 28, 2016 

 
Drain Line Installation Milestone – July 1, 2015 

Estimated Completion Date – Sept 30, 2016  
 
CDSM Milestone – November 15, 2016  

Completed May 1, 2016 
 
Compacted Berm Milestone – May 15, 2017 

Estimated Completion Date – June 30, 2017 
 

 

http://www.workzonecam.com/projects/pulice/perrisdam/

	09 20 16 Board Agenda
	Item 2 New employees
	Item 3 090616 Board Minutes
	MINUTES               3
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 4 09 20 16 GM report
	SEPTEMBER 20, 2016

	Item 5A 091316 Executive Committee
	Item 7 August Treasurer Rpt
	Item 8A USGS
	Item 9A August 2016 Water Use Reduction Figures Staff Report
	Item 9B Lake Perris Seismic Remediation staff report

